
THIS AGENDA MAY BE AMENDED UNTIL 3:00 PM THE DAY BEFORE THE MEETING 
 

SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS WILL BE PROVIDED WITH 48 HOUR NOTICE; CALL 541-563-3529.  
IF HEARING IMPAIRED, PLEASE DIAL 711 OR CALL TTY#1-800-735-1232 

This Institution is an Equal Opportunity Employer and Service Provider 
 

SEAL ROCK WATER DISTRICT 
Board of Commissioners 

Regular Monthly Board Meeting 
Thursday, August 10, 2023, @ 4:00 p.m. 

Public Meeting by Zoom Video Conference 
 

SRWD will hold this meeting through Zoom video conferencing. Due to the limited capacity for in-person meetings, 
the public is invited to attend this meeting electronically. Please E-mail tkarlsen@srwd.org to receive the meeting 
login information. SRWD encourages the public to submit written comments on items included in the agenda by 
email to tkarlsen@srwd.org by 2:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting to be included as public testimony. Comments 
received will be shared with the SRWD Board of Commissioners and included in the permanent record.    

• Call Regular Meeting to Order: 
 

• Announcements/Visitor Public Comments: 
The Public comment period provides the public with an opportunity to address the Commissioners regarding items on 
the agenda. Please limit comments to (3) minutes. 
 

• Consent Calendar: 
Managers’ reports included under the consent calendar are an executive summary provided to Commissioners as an 
update of system conditions, projects, and programs. Management welcomes your feedback and requests more 
detailed information regarding any item before or during the meeting:  

• Invoice List      July 2023 to August 2023 
• Board Meeting Minutes     July 13, 2023 
• Budget & Rate Hearing Board Meeting Minutes  May 11, 2023 
• Financial Report / Approve Invoices   July 2023 to August 2023 
• USDA PMR Phase IV No. 36    August 10, 2023 
• General Manager’s Monthly Report   July 2023 to August 2023 

 

• Discussion and Information Items: 
• Consider Primary Source Water Project Update 

Presented by:  Adam Denlinger, General Manager  
  Jeff Hollen, SRWD General Counsel 

 

• Decision Items:   
• None 

 

• Reports, Comments, and Correspondence:   
• August 2, 2023, Lincoln County Declaration Of Drought Emergency  
• August 1, 2023, Secretary of State Oregon Audits Division 
• August 4, 2023, SRWD Beaver Creek Hazardous Algee Bloom (HAB’s) Results 

 

• Executive Session: according to ORS 192.660(2), Concerning:  
The SRWD Board may meet in Executive Session, pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(h); To consult with legal counsel 
concerning the legal rights and duties of a public body with regard to current litigation or litigation likely to be filed. 
Representatives of the news media and designated staff shall be allowed to attend the executive session. All other 
members of the audience are asked to leave the room. Representatives of the news media are specifically directed 
not to report on any of the deliberations. No final decisions shall be made in Executive Session. 
 

• Adjournment: Next Meeting: September 14, 2023, @ 4:00 p.m.  Regular Board Meeting or establish date. 









 

1 
 

SEAL ROCK WATER DISTRICT 1 
 MINUTES OF THE  2 

 Regular Board Meeting 3 
 by Zoom Conference Call and In Person 4 

July 13, 2023 5 
 6 
 7 
 8 
Introduction to Remote Meeting: 9 
Denlinger, General Manager, explained that this board meeting is being conducted remotely and in person. Due to the 10 
limited capacity for in-person meetings, the public is invited to attend this meeting electronically. He further explained that 11 
the Board President will call each name to confirm those who are present via Zoom conference. After each person hears 12 
their name, they need to reply. For each decision item on the agenda that needs to be approved, after discussion and 13 
deliberation, the Board President will call each name of the commissioner for their vote. After the commissioners hear 14 
their names, he or she will give a vote in the affirmative by saying YES or negative by saying NO. 15 
 16 
Call Regular Meeting to Order: 17 
President Rob Mills called the work session & regular board meeting to order at 4:00 p.m., Thursday, July 13, 2023.  18 
 19 
Present: 20 
President Rob Mills confirmed that all commissioners present can hear each other by doing a roll call. Present on Zoom 21 
Conference Call was Commissioner Saundra-Mies Grantham, Secretary. Present in person in the Board room were 22 
Commissioner Rob Mills, Board President; Commissioner Karen Otta, Treasurer; and Commissioner Glen Morris, 23 
Member. Attorney Jeff Hollen, Legal Counsel. Staff: Adam Denlinger, General Manager; Joy King-Cortes, Office Manager. 24 
 25 
Excused Absences: Commissioner Paul Highfill. 26 
 27 
Announcements/Public Comments:  28 
President Rob Mills asked if there are any announcements.  29 
Commissioner Karen Otta had no announcement; Commissioner Saundra-Mies Grantham had no announcement; 30 
Commissioner Glen Morris had no announcement; Joy King-Cortes, Office Manager had no announcement; General 31 
Manager, Adam Denlinger had no announcement; Attorney Jeff Hollen had no announcement; President Rob Mills had no 32 
announcement.  33 
 34 
Swearing in of Re-elected Board of Commissioners: 35 
A Special Election was held on May 16, 2023. Commissioner Glen Morris was re-elected as a Seal Rock Water District 36 
Commissioner, Position 4, for a 4-year term which will expire on 6/30/2027. Commissioner Rob Mills was re-elected as a 37 
Seal Rock Water District Commissioner, Position 5, for a 4-year term which will expire on 6/30/2027. Both commissioners 38 
took the Official Oath of Office to affirm that they will support the Constitution of the United States of America and the 39 
Constitution of the State of Oregon and will faithfully and honorably serve in the office of an SRWD Commissioner to the 40 
best of their ability. The Official Oath was administered and notarized by Joy King-Cortes, a notary public. 41 
 42 
Public Comments: 43 
Mr. Julio Jimenez Perilla wanted to talk with staff regarding his water rates and his water bill. The office was closed for the 44 
day, so he attended the meeting and was given time to comment. After his public comments regarding the rate increase 45 
and his water bill, he gave his contact information to the office staff who will answer his questions during working hours.  46 
 47 
Consent Calendar: 48 
Items on the consent calendar are June/July 2023 Invoices List for approval; May 11, 2023, and June 8, 2023, Regular 49 
Board Meeting minutes; June/July 2023 Financial Report; USDA PMR Phase IV No. 35; and General Manager’s Monthly 50 
Report. President Rob Mills asked if each commissioner reviewed the consent calendar items. Commissioner Karen Otta 51 
answered YES; Commissioner Saundra Mies-Grantham answered YES; Commissioner Glen Morris answered YES; and 52 
President Rob Mills answered YES. May 11, 2023, minutes will be approved in the August Board meeting since there was 53 
no majority present to approve it. Commissioner Karen Otta motioned to approve the consent calendar not including the 54 
May 11, 2023, Board Meeting Minutes. Commissioner Glen Morris seconded the motion. Commissioner Glen Morris 55 
abstained from voting. The motion passed 3 voted YES and 1 abstained from voting. 56 
 57 
Discussion and Information Items: 58 
Primary Source Water Project Update: On the evening of July 6, water treatment operators were alerted of water on the 59 
floor at the water treatment plant. Crews discovered that a pipe connecting the lower end of the membrane module had 60 
completely shattered causing flooding throughout the building including the operations and electrical room. The crews 61 
were able to repair the module and spent considerable time performing extensive cleanup. The SRWD operators are 62 



 

2 
 

working with engineers from Jacobs and the manufacturer (Westech) to find out what may have caused the pipe to 63 
shatter. 64 
 65 
Water Quality:  66 
The office staff received calls from customers regarding the chlorine smell in the water. Beaver Creek is 10 degrees 67 
warmer than normal, and the stream flow is also low. This condition adds organic materials to the water in Beaver Creek. 68 
The bench scale model that the engineer did in 2016-17 showed in the summer months Beaver Creek would have higher 69 
organics but the water could be treated. Due to higher water temperatures and extremely low flow, there are more organic 70 
materials in the water than during the bench scale model done by the engineers 2 years before the project started. The 71 
operators have to use more pretreatment chemicals and perform more frequent backwashing to keep the filter skids 72 
clean. Operators are keeping up with the conditions, however, staff is looking into other treatment options to resolve the 73 
poor water quality issue during low flow conditions. This may include the installation of a Granular Activated Carbon 74 
(GAC) filter system on the finished water to reduce the taste and odor complaints. Staff had discussed this with Holly 75 
Halligan, USDA Area Specialist and she indicated that the cost of GAC could be included in the project cost to be paid 76 
from the remaining grant, if any. 77 
 78 
Job Description Update: 79 
The results of the salary survey information provided by HR Answers consultants and in compliance with the state’s pay 80 
equity requirements, the job descriptions of two district staff need to be updated based on performance and job 81 
expectations.  The job title Utility Billing Clerk should include Automated Meter Integration (AMI) Specialist. The job title 82 
Office Manager should include Finance Manager. 83 
 84 
Decision Items: 85 
Abstract of Votes: Staff received the Official Abstract of Votes for the May 16, 2023, Special Elections from Lincoln 86 
County Assessor’s Office. The Final Official Election Results need to be approved by the Board per ORS 255.295. 87 
Commissioner Glen Morris received 703 votes and Commissioner Rob Mills received 690 votes. It was motioned by 88 
Commissioner Glen Morris to approve and accept the May 16, 2023, Special Election Final Official Results. 89 
Commissioner Karen Otta seconded the motion.  The motion passed 4 – 0. 90 
 91 
Reports, Comments, Correspondence: 92 
There was a minor revision in the 2022 Annual Consumer Confidence Report (CCR). It has been posted on the District’s 93 
website, filed, and certified by OHA-Drinking Water Services. 94 
 95 
Recessed Regular Board Meeting:  President Rob Mills recessed the Regular Board Meeting at 5:10 p.m. to go into an 96 
Executive Session. 97 
 98 
Executive Session: according to ORS 192.660(2), Concerning:  99 
The SRWD Board may meet in Executive Session, pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(h); To consult with legal counsel 100 
concerning the legal rights and duties of a public body with regard to current litigation or litigation likely to be filed. 101 
Representatives of the news media and designated staff shall be allowed to attend the executive session. All other 102 
members of the audience are asked to leave the room. Representatives of the news media are specifically directed not to 103 
report on any of the deliberations. No final decisions shall be made in the Executive Session.  104 
 105 
Reconvened Regular Board Meeting: President Rob Mills adjourned the Executive Session and reconvened the 106 
Regular Board Meeting at 5:50 p.m. 107 
 108 
Adjournment: Motioned by Commissioner Glen Morris to adjourn the meeting. The motion was seconded by 109 
Commissioner Karen Otta. The meeting was adjourned at 5:54 p.m.  110 
     111 
Next Board Meeting:  August 10, 2023, at 4:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting. 112 
 113 
 114 
 115 
 116 
 117 
 118 
 119 
Approved by Board President      Date: 120 



 

1 
 

SEAL ROCK WATER DISTRICT 1 
 MINUTES OF THE  2 

 Regular Board Meeting, Rate Hearing, and Budget Hearing 3 
 by Zoom Conference Call and In Person 4 

May 11, 2023 5 
 6 
 7 
 8 
Introduction to Remote Meeting: 9 
Denlinger, General Manager, explained that this board meeting is being conducted remotely and in person. Due to the 10 
limited capacity for in-person meetings, the public is invited to attend this meeting electronically. He further explained that 11 
the Board President will call each name to confirm those who are present via Zoom conference. After each person hears 12 
their name, they need to reply. For each decision item on the agenda that needs to be approved, after discussion and 13 
deliberation, the Board President will call each name of the commissioner for their vote. After the commissioners hear 14 
their names, he or she will give a vote in the affirmative by saying YES or negative by saying NO. 15 
 16 
Call Regular Meeting to Order: 17 
President Rob Mills called the work session & regular board meeting to order at 4:01 p.m., Thursday, May 11, 2023.  18 
 19 
Present: 20 
President Rob Mills confirmed that all commissioners present can hear each other by doing a roll call. No one was present 21 
on Zoom Conference Call. Present in person in the Board room were Commissioner Rob Mills, Board President; 22 
Commissioner Glen Morris, Member; Commissioner Paul Highfill, Member. Attorney Jeff Hollen, Legal Counsel. Staff: 23 
Adam Denlinger, General Manager; Joy King-Cortes, Office Manager. 24 
Members of the public attending through Zoom were Teresa Denlinger and Claire Gerdes. 25 
 26 
Excused Absences: Commissioners Karen Otta and Saundra MIes-Grantham 27 
 28 
Announcements/Public Comments:  29 
President Rob Mills asked if there are any announcements.  30 
Commissioner Glen Morris recommended moving the rate hearing and budget hearing after approving the consent 31 
calendar on the agenda so that those attending don’t need to wait. Commissioner Paul Highfill had no announcement; Joy 32 
King-Cortes, Office Manager had no announcement; General Manager, Adam Denlinger had no announcement. Attorney 33 
Jeff Hollen had no announcement. President Rob Mills had no announcement.  34 
 35 
Consent Calendar: 36 
Items on the consent calendar are April/May 2023 Invoices List for approval; April 13, 2023, Regular Board Meeting 37 
minutes; April/May 2023 Financial Report; and General Manager’s Monthly Report. President Rob Mills asked if each 38 
commissioner reviewed the consent calendar items. Commissioner Glen Morris answered YES; Commissioner Paul 39 
Highfill answered YES; and President Rob Mills answered YES. Commissioner Glen Morris motioned to approve the 40 
consent calendar. Commissioner Paul Highfill seconded the motion. The motion passed 3-0. 41 
 42 
Rate Hearing: President Rob Mills open the public hearing at 4:05 pm in accordance with ORS Chapter 294.312, to 43 
receive public comments regarding the proposed water rate adjustment for FY 203-24. The GM, Adam Denlinger 44 
explained that the cost of materials and services has gone up 35%, affecting the district’s operation. In the last two years, 45 
the board decided not to increase the rates and see how the new water treatment plant affects operational costs when 46 
completed. There are new costs in running the new water treatment plant like chemicals, utilities, and regulatory 47 
requirements. The district is subject to compliance with the EPA’s new Lead and Copper Rule and increase sampling for 48 
testing.  49 
The required public notice was provided to customers as inserts to the monthly bills. The staff received six emails from the 50 
customers and were included as public testimonies in the board meeting packet. The staff received additional four emails 51 
this morning which are added to the meeting packet as part of the public testimonies. One of the emails is from Claire 52 
Gerdes who is present through Zoom. President Rob Mills asked Ms. Gerdes if she has additional comments to which she 53 
replied that her testimony/comment is contained in the email and that she has no additional comment at this time. 54 
Budget Hearing: 55 
President Rob Mills closed the rate hearing at 4:10 pm and opened the budget hearing for public testimony. The            56 
FY 2023-24 Budget includes the amount for the annual operations of the district, annual loan payments, and contributions 57 
to required reserves. On April 20, 2023, at 6:00 pm, the Budget Committee held a meeting to review and approve the 58 
proposed budget in the amount of $10,749,570. The staff did not receive any written comments regarding the budget 59 
approved by the Budget Committee. President Rob Mills asked the public present through Zoom if she had any comments 60 
to which she replied she has no comment. President Rob Mills closed the budget public hearing at 4:15 pm and 61 
reconvened the regular board meeting 62 



 

2 
 

 63 
Discussion and Information Items: 64 
Primary Source Water Project Update: The Water Treatment Plant is operating for a month now without interruption. 65 
The contractor has been on-site to work on items on the punch list. The contractor used a camera in locating the problem 66 
with the drain line. It was discovered that the problem is not under the concrete but outside the WTP between the building 67 
and the wash basin where there is a crack on the pipe. Excavation to repair the drain pipe is scheduled for next week. 68 
On April 27, the SRWD staff and engineers hosted a tour of the Water Treatment Facility for the Makai Community which 69 
is most impacted by the project. The engineers at the beginning of the project, Paul Berg and Tom Engleson attended the 70 
tour and answered questions from the customers. John Filbert who was a board member in the beginning phase of the 71 
project also attended the tour which was attended by about 60 people who took the opportunity to see how water is 72 
treated from Beaver Creek through the Ultra Membrane Filtration before water is delivered to the customers.  73 
 74 
Decision Items: 75 
Consider Approving Amendment No. 4 to Owner – Engineer Agreement: 76 
Jacobs Engineer submitted Amendment No. 4 to increase the contract by $36,560.This cost is due to continued support 77 
caused by the delays in project completion. This cost is not covered by USDA loans and grants and will be paid from the 78 
district’s money in the Capital Projects Fund. Commissioner Glen Morris motioned to approve Amendment No. 4. 79 
Commissioner Paul Highfill seconded the motion. The motion was passed 3 – 0. 80 
Consider Approving Resolution No. 0523-01: 81 
During the April 20, Budget Committee Meeting it was discussed that the Depreciation/Short-lived Assets Replacement 82 
Account (SLARA) Fund description needs to be amended to include: paying for repairs and/or replacement of major 83 
system assets based on the preliminary report schedule of short-lived assets with an estimated life of 15 years or less as 84 
specified by USDA Letter of Conditions. Commissioner Glen Morris motioned to approve Resolution 0523-01. 85 
Commissioner Paul Highfill seconded the motion. The motion was passed 3 – 0.   86 
 87 
Reports, Comments, Correspondence: 88 
The office will be closed on May 9, in observance of Memorial Day. The district received a Drinking Water Services 89 
Oustanding Performance Certificate from the Oregon Health Authority (OHA) as a result of the water system survey 90 
performed by OHA on March 13, 2023. The SRWD water system facilities were found to be well-operated and maintained 91 
by knowledgeable staff. As an Outstanding Performer, the next system survey will be done in five years instead of every 3 92 
years.  93 
The district also received the Pacific Northwest Meter System of the Year 2023 at the Utility Solution Expo in Seaside. 94 
The district received this award for the team’s vision and determination to take the smart water grid system and customer 95 
service to the next level. The award was accepted by Brendi Hoch and Brad Wynn who attended the expo.  96 
 97 
Recessed Regular Board Meeting:  President Rob Mills recessed the Regular Board Meeting at 4:32 p.m. to go into an 98 
executive Session. 99 
 100 
Executive Session: according to ORS 192.660(2), Concerning:  101 
The SRWD Board may meet in Executive Session, pursuant to ORS 192.660(2)(h); To consult with legal counsel 102 
concerning the legal rights and duties of a public body with regard to current litigation or litigation likely to be filed. 103 
Representatives of the news media and designated staff shall be allowed to attend the executive session. All other 104 
members of the audience are asked to leave the room. Representatives of the news media are specifically directed not to 105 
report on any of the deliberations. No final decisions shall be made in Executive Session. The public who attended the 106 
meeting through Zoom were excused from the executive session. 107 
 108 
Reconvened Regular Board Meeting: President Rob Mills adjourned the Executive Session and reconvened the 109 
Regular Board Meeting at 5:15 p.m. 110 
 111 
Adjournment: Motioned by Commissioner Glen Morris to adjourn the meeting. The motion was seconded by 112 
Commissioner Paul Highfill. The meeting was adjourned at 5:16 p.m.  113 
      114 
Next Board Meeting:  June 8, 2023, at 4:00 p.m. Regular Board Meeting. 115 
 116 
 117 
 118 
 119 
 120 
 121 
Approved by Board President      Date: 122 



Month End: July 2023
Date: 8/1/2023

Total customers 2672
New connections 0
Reinstalls 0
Abandonments/Forfeitures/Meter Removed 0
Financial Report Checking/MM LGIP/PFMMA Fund Balances
General $495,374.23 $18,098.70 $513,472.93
Bond $674,708.85 $0.00 $674,708.85
Capital Projects    $110,850.01 $68,577.73 $179,427.74
Revenue Bond $2,793.99 $4,366.58 $7,160.57
Rural Development Reserve $0.00 $98,674.05 $98,674.05
Dist. Office/Shop Reserve $3,614.96 $124,175.26 $127,790.22
Depreciation/SLARA  Reserve $0.00 $229,120.47 $229,120.47
SDC (formerly SIP) $0.00 $695,580.81 $695,580.81
Water Source Improvement Rsrv $0.00 $254,045.48 $254,045.48

     TOTALS $1,287,342.04 $1,492,639.08 $2,779,981.12
General Fund Review Current FYTD Budgeted Amount
Revenue  $250,900.45 250,900.45 $3,205,120.00
Expenses                                $247,513.50 247,513.50 $3,205,120.00
Net Gain or (Loss) from Operations $3,386.95 $3,386.95
Water Sales Revenue Comparison Month FYTD
Water Sales Current Year $237,583.78 $237,583.78
Actual+In Lieu of Water Sales Less H2O CR $242,583.78 $242,583.78
Water Sales Prior Year $193,361.09 $193,361.09
Actual+In Lieu of Water Sales Less H2O CR $198,362.18 $198,362.18       
Over or (Under) $44,222.69 $44,222.69
Gallonage Comparison Current Prior Year Cost Comparison Current Prior Year
Gallons Purchased/Intertie/WTP Treated 11,685,000 8,114,158 Toledo Charges $0.00 $19,388.70
Gallons Sold (includes accountable loss & intertie) 9,499,512 8,954,560 SRWD Sales $237,583.78 $193,361.09
Variance % 18.70% -10.36% Ratio: Sales/Cost 0.00 9.97

Gallons Produced/Treated at WTP 11,685,000
Gallons from Toledo Master Meter 0
SRWD Intertie Usage (Purchased) 0

Total Water Received/Produced 11,685,000
City of Newport Intertie Usage (Sold) 0
Total Gallons Accounted 9,562,749

Total Gallons Unaccounted 2,122,251
Water Loss Percentage 18.16%
Approval To Pay Bills Payroll 7/14/2023 $27,620.92 Payroll 7/28/2023 $29,511.31

Month of: (after meeting) August

GF A/P $13,944.89 GF A/P $38,802.79 up to 8/7/2023

SDC Fund $0.00 SDC Fund $0.00

Bond/Rev Bond Fund $0.00 Bond/Rev Bond Fund $0.00

Depreciation/SLARA $0.00 Depreciation/SLARA $0.00

MP - Phase 4 (IFA) $0.00 MP - Phase 4 (IFA) $0.00

MP- Phase 4 (USDA) $0.00 MP- Phase 4 (USDA) $0.00

MCWPP $0.00 MCWPP $0.00

MCWCC $0.00 MCWCC $0.00

Monthly  Accrual Statistics Beg. Balance Accrued Used/Paid Balance
6/30/2023 7/31/2023

Office Overtime Hours  (2-01) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Field Overtime Hours  (2-02) 0.00 1.75 1.75 0.00
PTO  (3-01) 3118.21 122.48 100.00 3140.69
Comp Time  (9-01 / 9-02) 87.14 102.76 45.50 144.40
F:office/joy/excel/Financial Reports/Monthly Report Format

Toledo Master Meter Readings read by SRWD field crew

From flushing, leaks, CL2 Analyzer, & fire hydrant use

 

Additional water SRWD used/purchased from Newport Intertie

6/12/2023-7/11/2023

TOTAL FYTD ADJUSTMENTS $0.00

Gallons sold to City of Newport for water used from the Newport Intertie

             SRWD Monthly Financial Report 

CommentsMonthly Statistics
Includes new connects Less Abandoned / Forfeited meter plus 3 SRWD meters (shop X 2 & office) plus 1 Hydrant meter

$7,421,586 Interim Loan Proceeds

Comments

Note: Rate increase effective 6/1/2023

Comments

$1,278,478.50 SDC collections thru 7/31/2023

Leak Adj/Write off FYTD $0.00

Comments
Leak Adjustments & Billings Adjustments (YTD = July - June)

Contingency $100,000; Transfers $416,320; Total expenses budgeted $2,677,800.

Billing Adj FYTD $0.00



P a g e  | 1 
 

Seal Rock Water District is an Equal Opportunity Service Provider and Employer.  
Adam Denlinger, General Manager 

adenlinger@srwd.org 
www.srwd.org 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Manager’s Report:   
Board Meeting August 10, 2023     
  
This report is an executive summary provided with this Board agenda to Commissioners with recommended 
actions if any. Detailed information, staff reports, and supporting materials are provided within the full 
agenda packet.    

PHASE-IV BEAVER CREEK SOURCE WATER PROJECT:   

Jacobs engineers and district staff met with representatives for USDA-RD on August 7th to perform the 11-month 
warranty walkthrough. Operators pointed out several concerns the district has experienced during the past 11 months 
of operation to include: various pump failures including chemical feed pump failures. Automatic valves not functioning 
on command or sticking open/shut. Membrane filtration skids that have been difficult to clean, restricting production.   
 
Jacobs Lead Membrane Engineer was on site in July to evaluate individual membrane modules to determine how to 
effectively clean the filtration units for best performance and to maintain the health of the membranes. While we wait 
for a comprehensive report, the engineers did make some recommendations for adjusting cleaning protocols, which 
have been beneficial in extending the length of time between cleanings.  
 

           
Paul Muller, Jacobs Engineering prepping a membrane module for evaluation.  
 

mailto:adenlinger@srwd.org


P a g e  | 2 
 

Seal Rock Water District is an Equal Opportunity Service Provider and Employer.  
Adam Denlinger, General Manager 

adenlinger@srwd.org 
www.srwd.org 

 

Due to raw water quality issues and an increase in organics, operators took steps to engage the State (DEQ) in an effort 
to have raw water on Beaver Creek tested for the presence of Hazardous Algae Bloom (HAB). Raw Water Analysis 
provided by DEQ includes testing for Cyanotoxins to include Cylindrospermopsin and Microcytins. The district provided 
two raw water samples which were both analyzed, and the results were negative, or non-detect (ND). Testing provided 
by DEQ is free of charge. However, if future testing includes a positive result the district would be subject to the states 
HAB’s regulations. Results of testing are included in the board packet and will be provided in future CCR reporting.  
 
Update on continued server failure at the WTP with notes between engineer and operators:  
 

1. Thurs 8/3/2023 afternoon/evening working remotely: limited HMI, no historian: 
a. SERVER1: Down.  

Larry texted me and indicated very slow HMI (Human Machine Interface) operation and workstation 2 
kicked him out a couple of times. I remotely connected and discovered Server 1 was offline. I opened a 
ticket with Dell Technical support and collected event log data from SERVER1 to plan necessary repair 
steps. Dell requires the owner or owner rep to first take troubleshooting steps to determine what a 
field tech might need to do. Scheduled to work with Dell technical support on 8/4/2023 with me at the 
site. 

b. SCADA UPS: Unknown issue.  
While talking with Larry on the phone I could hear a beeping sound which was the UPS alarm. It could 
not be silenced. It was online but had an unknown issue. 

c. SERVER2: Online.  
No problems, Plant was still operational with Server 2 in operation albeit with a very slow HMI, no 
Historical data collection, and limited remote access. 
 

2. Fri 8/4/2023 onsite 9 am-2:30 pm: limited HMI, no historian, UPS problem 
a. SERVER1: Down. 

While onsite with Dell tech support on the phone I went through all the troubleshooting steps 
recommended by Dell and with their assistance determined a disk power supply issue. Dell will 
be onsite today to swap out a disk power supply board and all associated cables. They are also 
bringing a motherboard in the event that replacing the other items does not resolve. 

b. SCADA UPS: Unknown issue 
Took pictures of UPS display, and reviewed manual. Determined that the UPS (Uninterruptible 
Power System) was operating in bypass mode (no battery backup but with passive line 
filtering). Called UPS tech support and waited for a reply. No response while onsite and left the 
site around 2:30 pm. Tech called, and we made contact around 3:30 pm. I sent photos of UPS 
displays. He confirmed it was operating in bypass mode but what was being shown on the 
display was irregular and that there was certainly an issue. He recommended turning UPS off, 
removing power, and bringing it back online to see if that would clear the problem.  

c. SERVER2: Online 
Plant was still operational with Server 2 in operation albeit with a very slow HMI, no Historical 
data collection, and limited remote access. 
 

3. Sat 8/5/2023 evening working remotely: Limited HMI, no historian, UPS problem 
a. SERVER1: Down 
b. SERVER2: Online 

Received a call from Adam that they were no longer able to remote into the SCADA system. I 
was still able to remote in and access the HMI from the Engineering Workstation. Planned to 
talk with Larry Sunday morning to possibly get him remote access or to have him tell me what 
they would want to do operationally. 

c. SCADA UPS: Unknown issue 

mailto:adenlinger@srwd.org


P a g e  | 3 
 

Seal Rock Water District is an Equal Opportunity Service Provider and Employer.  
Adam Denlinger, General Manager 

adenlinger@srwd.org 
www.srwd.org 

 

4. Sun 8/6/2023 morning working remotely: No HMI, no historian, UPS problem 
a. SERVER1: Down. 
b. SERVER2: Down. Received a call from Adam around 7 AM. Contacted Adam a little after 8 AM. He 

returned to the plant, and we discovered SERVER2 was powered off. I had him try to power it on and it 
would not turn on. 

c. SCADA UPS: Unknown issue. 
 

5. Sun 8/6/2023 afternoon working onsite: Limited HMI, no historian, UPS resolved 
a. SERVER1:Down. 
b. Operations: I met Chris onsite at 1 PM. I was able to initiate the Lost Creek storage auto-fill sequence 

from the PLC program.  
c. UPS: Operating normally. 

With both servers down I took the opportunity to attempt the UPS reset as described above 
(cycling power). This reset the UPS and the alarm was cleared. UPS displayed information 
normally. Took additional videos and photos for UPS tech support if needed. Will monitor the 
status of UPS going forward to see if problems return. 

d. SERVER2: Online. 
Called Dell tech support and opened a support ticket. With their assistance, we determined the 
server was powering on/off repeatedly every 40-150 seconds since late Saturday evening. I 
took troubleshooting steps at Dell tech direction to do a cold power reset. This resolved the 
issue. We reviewed all event logs and no entries were pinpointing what caused the issue. Tech 
indicated a cold power reset resolves this type of problem about 10% of the time. Prior to 
restarting all of the software we ran diagnostic routines and rebooted the server 4 times to try 
and get the server in the same state. With it operating correctly we decided to run the software 
and monitor the operation. If no issues for the next week, Dell will close the ticket. If issues 
arise, I’ll contact Dell. 
 

6. Mon 8/7/2023 morning working remotely: Limited HMI, no historian, UPS resolved 
a. SERVER1: Down. Dell is scheduled to be onsite between 4 PM and 5 PM to repair. 
b. SERVER2: Online 

Operational this morning with no issues overnight. Plant is still operational with Server 2 in 
operation albeit with a very slow HMI, no Historical data collection, and limited remote access. 

c. UPS: Have not had a chance to check functional status yet. 
 
Other notable activities for the month include:  

o Attended meetings with engineers to discuss membrane module onsite testing. 
o Met with representatives from USDA-RD and Engineers to perform the 11-month warranty 

walkthrough.  
o Participated in interview panel for the City of Newport’s Public Works Directors Position.    
o Met with representatives from USDA-RD to provide project status reports.  
o Attended Mid Coast Water Conservation Consortium Meeting. 
o Met with property owners in the district to discuss water quality issues.  
o Attended OWRD Place-Based Planning Meetings.  
o Met with GSI Water Solutions to review progress on MC-WPP, and the Water Management and 

Conservation Plan, and Beaver Creek streamflow and temperature monitoring.  
o Attended SDAO Legislative Water Committee meetings.  
o Attended the Monthly Oregon Water Utility Commission (OWUC) meeting. 
o Attended the Lincoln County Drought Committee meeting.  

mailto:adenlinger@srwd.org


1 

2 

3 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

FOR LINCOLN COUNTY, OREGON 

4 In the Matter of: ) ORDER NO. 
-----

5 Declaration of Local Disaster and Request ) 

6 To Declare a State Drought Emergency ) 

7 For Lincoln County, Oregon ) 
8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

29 

30 

31 

32 

33 

34 

WHEREAS on this 2nd day of August, 2023, the Lincoln County Board of Commissioners finds 

that the Lincoln County resource based (including but not limited to, forestry, agricultural, 

fisheries, industries, and tourism) and related economy are suffering widespread and severe 

economic damage, potential injuries and loss of property resulting from extreme weather 

conditions within the County; and 

WHEREAS annual water supplies available for farm, forest, recreation and natural uses as well as 

municipal water supplies within Lincoln County are a function of available water in the County 

watersheds and in various tributaries. Water supplies are in serious jeopardy this year; and 

WHEREAS the Seasonal Climate Forecast for August through October 2023 was issued on July 

20, 2023 (attached as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference) and predicts below 

average precipitation for the Oregon Coast and above average temperatures for August 2023 

(page 13 of Exhibit A); and below average precipitation for September 2023 (page 14 of Exhibit 

A); and while there is less forecast confidence based on the wide variety of weather conditions 

during the analog years compared for the forecasts, the precipitation data from June 2023 for 

Lincoln County is "abnormally dry" and "moderate drought" through July 13, 2023 (page 21 of 

Exhibit A); and 

WHEREAS the Siletz River as of July 23, 2023, is flowing at 83 cubic feet per second (CFS) at 

the USGS gaging station upstream of Siletz which is 46% of average for this date. (Current 

Local Drought Impacts and Forecast, Gibson Family Farms letter dated July 23, 2023 

attached as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by reference). The Siletz River flows have 

regularly established historical daily minimums this summer based on records from the years 

spanning 1906-2022. (Exhibit B citing https://www.nwrfc.noaa.gov/rfc/). The Alsea River is 

discharging 113 CFS, which is 70% of average for this date and the Yachats River is flowing at 

17.3 CFS on July 22, which is 66.2% of average for July. (Exhibit B citing https:// 

www.nwrfc.noaa.gov/rfc/); and 

Order # Page 1 of3 



35 

36 

37 

38 

39 WHEREAS historically the next two months are usually the driest time period for our region 

40 with significant rainfall not occurring until late September or early October; and 

41 

42 WHEREAS in September of 2020 Lincoln County and the State of Oregon experienced one of 

43 the most severe wildfire seasons in the County's history. The Echo Mountain Complex 

44 Wildfire ravaged a large area of north Lincoln County, destroying or damaging over 300 

45 residences and structures, and requiring the evacuations of thousands of persons. Survivors are 

46 still engaged in recovery and rebuilding as another fire season is imminent; and 

47 

48 WHEREAS the Oregon Department of Forestry (ODF) is maintaining Industrial Fire Precaution 

49 Level (IFPL) 1 (Fire Season) or IFPL 2 (Limited Shutdown) for areas of Lincoln County. 

50 (Exhibit B). Public fire danger in the Western Oregon District is "Moderate." (Exhibit B citing 

51 https://www.oregon.gov/odf/fire/Pages/restrictions.aspx); and 

52 

53 WHEREAS multiple priority instream water rights on the Siletz River have already been

54 invoked to protect the aquatic life, recreation and fish and wildlife flows protected by those 

55 priority rights. Junior rights holders have been regulated off use of their water rights and 

56 will not be able to draw water in those circumstances. This will result in a loss of economic 

57 stability, lost growing season, and decreased water supplies for Lincoln County 

58 agricultural producers and municipal water suppliers. In addition, river water temperatures are 

59 already at unseasonable highs and restricted fishing access will likely be put in place very soon 

60 to protect fish stocks; and 

61 

62 WHEREAS the Lincoln County Board of Commissioners determines that extraordinary 

63 measures must be taken to alleviate suffering of people, natural resources and to protect or mitigate 

64 economic loss, begin water conservation and curtailment plans and actions, and to be responsive 

65 to the threat of wildfires. 

66 

67 

Order # _ _____ ,Page 2 of 3 



68 

69 

70 

71 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDERED by the Lincoln County Board of Commissioners that: 

72 

73 l. A local disaster is declared within Lincoln County.

74 

75 2. Pursuant to ORS 401.032(2), we find that appropriate response is beyond the capability of

76 Lincoln County. We are declaring a state of emergency for the purpose of assessment,

77 evaluation and acquiring the ability to provide appropriate available resources.

78 

79 3. Request: The Honorable Tina Kotek, Governor of Oregon, declare a Drought Emergency

80 for all of Lincoln County under the provisions of ORS 401.165 due to severe and continuing

81 drought conditions beginning at this time and continuing for an unknown period of time; and

82 direct the Oregon Department of Water Resources to make available in Lincoln County

83 appropriate and available tools and resources to alleviate drought conditions and impacts and

84 to provide other federal and state drought assistance and programs as needed.

85 

86 4. In addition, we call on the Mid-Coast Conservation Consortium and other public and

87 private water purveyors to begin water conservation education and specific curtailment

88 activities as appropriate to address the current drought conditions and the continued drought

89 emergencies that are expected this summer and fall.

90 

91 5. This Order shall take effect immediately.

92 

Dated this 2nd day of August, 2023 

LINCOLN COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

Order # ______ , Page 3 of 3 

































































































NOTIFICATION OF OPERATIONS/PERMIT TO 
OPERATE POWER-DRIVEN MACHINERY (NOAP)
Notification Number:

Operation Name:

2023-553-09307
ANE - South Beaver Creek 

Aerial Spray

This NOAP includes the following for the lands described in the NOAP:

Person Submitting the NOAP:

Date NOAP Submitted:

Report Generated:

Tyrol Forfar

August 7, 2023

August 2, 2023

Oregon Department of Forestry Contact Info Operator's Fire Emergency Contact

Toledo
763 NW Forestry Rd
Toledo, Oregon 97391
Phone: (541) 336-2273
Stewardship Forester: Rieghly Sitton
Email: rieghly.k.sitton@odf.oregon.gov

Contact Name: Tyrol Forfar
Phone: 360-600-7691

Landowner(s) Notice to Landowner(s)

Sorn Nymark
ANE Forests of Oregon C/O HFI Consultants
PO Box 1929
Battle Ground, Washington 98604
360-600-2342

The Oregon Department of Forestry may conduct on-site 
inspections for compliance with forest practice and fire 
protection laws.

 ·  The notifier has given notice to the State Forester that pesticides will be applied by helicopter.
 ·  The Oregon Department of Forestry or local Forest Protective Association has issued a permit to use fire or 
operate power-driven machinery. 

Written Plans

A Written Plan (in addition to this NOAP) is required before operation activities can begin near the protected 
resources listed with the Unit information or Site Conditions below or otherwise described to you by the 
Stewardship Forester (OAR 629-605-0170 (2), (3), and (5)). The Written Plan must describe in detail how the 
resource(s) will be protected during the operation. There is a waiting period for Written Plans that is separate from 
the notification waiting period. Contact your Stewardship Forester for more information.
Site Conditions (reported by the Notifier)

Stream within 100 feet of area.

Seep or spring within 100 feet of area.

Waiting Period

You must wait at least 30 days after submitting this NOAP before spraying (see ORS 527.788(3)). This waiting period 
cannot be waived.
90-Day Application Window

Spray activity may happen only during the 90-day window. You may notify for a new 90-day window using the “I 
Want To…” menu in your Notification Summary within the E-Notification system.
Window Start Date: 9/2/2023

Window End Date: 11/30/2023

ANE - South Beaver Creek Aerial Spray (2023-553
-09307)

1 of 10

https://secure.sos.state.or.us/oard/viewSingleRule.action?ruleVrsnRsn=162431


Domestic water supply within 300 feet of area.

Bald Eagle nesting site within half mile of area.

Home or other dwelling within 300 feet of helicopter application of pesticide.

Notices
Submitting this Notification of operations on lands described in the NOAP constitutes consent for Department staff 
to access the property to ensure compliance with state law and rules governing forest practices through on-site 
inspections. The landowner must notify the stewardship forester to withdraw this consent.
Permission from Landowner and Timber Owner Required for Operators, purchasers, contractors, general public: 
Submitting this notification does not give permission for operators, purchasers, contractors, or the general public to 
enter someone else's land or remove forest products.  Anyone doing so must first obtain permission from the 
landowner and timber owner.
Pesticide Use: Pesticide users must follow all pesticide product label requirements, including any that prohibit 
applications near or into streams or other water bodies! Pesticide users must be sure the label that comes with the 
pesticide product allows the planned use! Contact the Oregon Department of Agriculture here or at 503-986-4635 
for information on allowed uses of pesticide products. 
Neighborly Communication: Notifier must mark each unit as pending by 7 p.m. the day before spraying. 
For pending units, notifier must report the spray as complete or incomplete. Notifier must mark units as complete 
within 24 hours of spraying. For partially sprayed units with plans to return to finish spraying, notifier must report 
the unit as incomplete by 11:59 p.m. the day after spraying.

For units that do not get sprayed, no reporting is needed. The notifier must mark the unit as pending again before 
spraying.
Using Water for Pesticides or Slash Burning: If you plan to use on-site water (water from a stream, for example) to 
mix pesticides or for slash burning, you must provide a copy of this NOAP to the local offices of the Oregon Water 
Resources Department and the Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife (see ORS 537.141).
Registrants & Subscribers: There may be registrants and/or subscribers who receive this Notification. See 
the Notification Summary page within the E-Notification system or contact ODF for more details.
NOAP Changes: The notifier must inform the Oregon Department of Forestry of any changes in a NOAP before the 
activity takes place.   A new NOAP may be required.

ANE - South Beaver Creek Aerial Spray (2023-553
-09307)

2 of 10

https://www.oregon.gov/oda/Pages/default.aspx


Unit 1 of 8: Unit240North_1 No registrants within 1 mile

8.6 acres Lincoln County(s) T12S R11W Sec28 Regulated Use Area: WO-1

Operator: 
Anthony Ghidossi
Pacific AG Services North 
West LLC
PO Box 875
Marysville, Washington 98270
(775) 225-4212

Activity: Herbicide Application (Unit)
Chemical(s): Aquaneat, Rotary 2 SL, Oust Extra
Chemical Carrier(s): water
Chemical Additive(s): Super Spread MSO

Method(s): Aerial - 
Helicopter

Resources on or near this Unit

Statutory Written Plan required within 100 feet of Statutory Written Plan required within 300 feet of

Eagle

Notes:

1. A statutory written plan is required for operations within 300 feet of Estuarine or Marine Wetlands, not 100 feet as 
may be shown above. 

2. Contact your Stewardship Forester about streams not shown on the map.

Unit Map: Unit240North_1

ANE - South Beaver Creek Aerial Spray (2023-553
-09307)

3 of 10



Unit 2 of 8: Unit240North_2 No registrants within 1 mile

89.0 acres Lincoln County(s) T12S R11W Sec28,T12S R11W 
Sec33

Regulated Use Area: WO-1

Operator: 
Anthony Ghidossi
Pacific AG Services North 
West LLC
PO Box 875
Marysville, Washington 98270
(775) 225-4212

Activity: Herbicide Application (Unit)
Chemical(s): Aquaneat, Rotary 2 SL, Oust Extra
Chemical Carrier(s): water
Chemical Additive(s): Super Spread MSO

Method(s): Aerial - 
Helicopter

Resources on or near this Unit

Statutory Written Plan required within 100 feet of Statutory Written Plan required within 300 feet of

Eagle

Notes:

1. A statutory written plan is required for operations within 300 feet of Estuarine or Marine Wetlands, not 100 feet as 
may be shown above. 

2. Contact your Stewardship Forester about streams not shown on the map.

Unit Map: Unit240North_2

ANE - South Beaver Creek Aerial Spray (2023-553
-09307)

4 of 10



Unit 3 of 8: Unit240South Registrant(s) within 1 mile

69.2 acres Lincoln County(s) T12S R11W Sec33 Regulated Use Area: WO-1

Operator: 
Anthony Ghidossi
Pacific AG Services North 
West LLC
PO Box 875
Marysville, Washington 98270
(775) 225-4212

Activity: Herbicide Application (Unit)
Chemical(s): Aquaneat, Rotary 2 SL, Oust Extra
Chemical Carrier(s): water
Chemical Additive(s): Super Spread MSO

Method(s): Aerial - 
Helicopter

Unit Map: Unit240South

ANE - South Beaver Creek Aerial Spray (2023-553
-09307)

5 of 10



Unit 4 of 8: Christmas Camp East Registrant(s) within 1 mile

54.9 acres Lincoln County(s) T12S R11W Sec34,T12S R11W 
Sec35

Regulated Use Area: WO-1

Operator: 
Anthony Ghidossi
Pacific AG Services North 
West LLC
PO Box 875
Marysville, Washington 98270
(775) 225-4212

Activity: Herbicide Application (Unit)
Chemical(s): Aquaneat, Rotary 2 SL, Oust Extra
Chemical Carrier(s): water
Chemical Additive(s): Super Spread MSO

Method(s): Aerial - 
Helicopter

Resources on or near this Unit

Statutory Written Plan required within 100 feet of

Unknown: Small - Type F Stream

Unknown: Small - SSBT Stream

Statutory Written Plan required within 300 feet of

Notes:

1. A statutory written plan is required for operations within 300 feet of Estuarine or Marine Wetlands, not 100 feet as 
may be shown above. 

2. Contact your Stewardship Forester about streams not shown on the map.

Unit Map: Christmas Camp East

ANE - South Beaver Creek Aerial Spray (2023-553
-09307)

6 of 10



Unit 5 of 8: Graves001 Registrant(s) within 1 mile

108.4 acres Lincoln County(s) T12S R11W Sec33,T13S R11W 
Sec4

Regulated Use Area: WO-1

Operator: 
Anthony Ghidossi
Pacific AG Services North 
West LLC
PO Box 875
Marysville, Washington 98270
(775) 225-4212

Activity: Herbicide Application (Unit)
Chemical(s): Aquaneat, Rotary 2 SL, Oust Extra
Chemical Carrier(s): water
Chemical Additive(s): Super Spread MSO

Method(s): Aerial - 
Helicopter

Resources on or near this Unit

Statutory Written Plan required within 100 feet of

Wetlands: Freshwater Emergent Wetland

Statutory Written Plan required within 300 feet of

Notes:

1. A statutory written plan is required for operations within 300 feet of Estuarine or Marine Wetlands, not 100 feet as 
may be shown above. 

2. Contact your Stewardship Forester about streams not shown on the map.

Unit Map: Graves001

ANE - South Beaver Creek Aerial Spray (2023-553
-09307)

7 of 10



Unit 6 of 8: Graves002 Registrant(s) within 1 mile

59.9 acres Lincoln County(s) T13S R11W Sec3,T13S R11W 
Sec4

Regulated Use Area: WO-1

Operator: 
Anthony Ghidossi
Pacific AG Services North 
West LLC
PO Box 875
Marysville, Washington 98270
(775) 225-4212

Activity: Herbicide Application (Unit)
Chemical(s): Aquaneat, Rotary 2 SL, Oust Extra
Chemical Carrier(s): water
Chemical Additive(s): Super Spread MSO

Method(s): Aerial - 
Helicopter

Unit Map: Graves002

ANE - South Beaver Creek Aerial Spray (2023-553
-09307)

8 of 10



Unit 7 of 8: Graves003-1 Registrant(s) within 1 mile

72.7 acres Lincoln County(s) T13S R11W Sec3 Regulated Use Area: WO-1

Operator: 
Anthony Ghidossi
Pacific AG Services North 
West LLC
PO Box 875
Marysville, Washington 98270
(775) 225-4212

Activity: Herbicide Application (Unit)
Chemical(s): Aquaneat, Rotary 2 SL, Oust Extra
Chemical Carrier(s): water
Chemical Additive(s): Super Spread MSO

Method(s): Aerial - 
Helicopter

Resources on or near this Unit

Statutory Written Plan required within 100 feet of

Graves Creek: Small - Type F Stream

Unknown: Small - Type F Stream

Statutory Written Plan required within 300 feet of

Notes:

1. A statutory written plan is required for operations within 300 feet of Estuarine or Marine Wetlands, not 100 feet as 
may be shown above. 

2. Contact your Stewardship Forester about streams not shown on the map.

Unit Map: Graves003-1

ANE - South Beaver Creek Aerial Spray (2023-553
-09307)

9 of 10



Unit 8 of 8: Graves003-2 Registrant(s) within 1 mile

10.9 acres Lincoln County(s) T13S R11W Sec3 Regulated Use Area: WO-1

Operator: 
Anthony Ghidossi
Pacific AG Services North 
West LLC
PO Box 875
Marysville, Washington 98270
(775) 225-4212

Activity: Herbicide Application (Unit)
Chemical(s): Aquaneat, Rotary 2 SL, Oust Extra
Chemical Carrier(s): water
Chemical Additive(s): Super Spread MSO

Method(s): Aerial - 
Helicopter

Resources on or near this Unit

Statutory Written Plan required within 100 feet of

Graves Creek: Small - Type F Stream

Unknown: Medium - Type F Stream

Unknown: Small - Type F Stream

Statutory Written Plan required within 300 feet of

Notes:

1. A statutory written plan is required for operations within 300 feet of Estuarine or Marine Wetlands, not 100 feet as 
may be shown above. 

2. Contact your Stewardship Forester about streams not shown on the map.

Unit Map: Graves003-2

ANE - South Beaver Creek Aerial Spray (2023-553
-09307)

10 of 10


	ADP644B.tmp
	SEAL ROCK WATER DISTRICT
	MINUTES OF THE
	Regular Board Meeting
	by Zoom Conference Call and In Person
	July 13, 2023
	Introduction to Remote Meeting:
	Denlinger, General Manager, explained that this board meeting is being conducted remotely and in person. Due to the limited capacity for in-person meetings, the public is invited to attend this meeting electronically. He further explained that the Boa...
	Approved by Board President      Date:


	ADP986.tmp
	SEAL ROCK WATER DISTRICT
	MINUTES OF THE
	Regular Board Meeting, Rate Hearing, and Budget Hearing
	by Zoom Conference Call and In Person
	May 11, 2023
	Introduction to Remote Meeting:
	Denlinger, General Manager, explained that this board meeting is being conducted remotely and in person. Due to the limited capacity for in-person meetings, the public is invited to attend this meeting electronically. He further explained that the Boa...
	Approved by Board President      Date:


	ADPAA3E.tmp
	July 2023

	ADP7DDC.tmp
	Phase-IV Beaver Creek Source Water Project:

	ADP6013.tmp
	SEAL ROCK WATER DISTRICT
	MINUTES OF THE
	Regular Board Meeting, Rate Hearing, and Budget Hearing
	by Zoom Conference Call and In Person
	May 11, 2023
	Introduction to Remote Meeting:
	Denlinger, General Manager, explained that this board meeting is being conducted remotely and in person. Due to the limited capacity for in-person meetings, the public is invited to attend this meeting electronically. He further explained that the Boa...
	Approved by Board President      Date:





